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DESCRIPTION OF CITY OF STALINABAD

[Fumbers in parsniheses refer to appended sources./

Stalinabad, the capital of Tedzhik SSR » 15 located on the Varsob River in
the center of the Glssarskaya Valley. The city has straight blocks s and wide,
8traight streets paved with asphalt; industrial plants are located on the out-
skirte, especially on the southern side. Roads and railrosds streteh out in
the shape of a fan from the center of tha city and pass between fields of cotton
and trees.

The it4rritory of present-da Stalingbad was formerly occupied by three vil-
lages: Sarry-Asslya to the nort » Sekhmansur to the south, and between then,

Dyushambe. Translated {rom the Tadzhik, Dyushambe means second night and corra-

sponds to the Russian for Monday. 1In 192, Dyushambe was made the center of

Autonomous Tadzhikistan ; and one yeer later it was established as a city. In

1929 1t became the capital of the reorganized Tadzhik republic, was connected i
vwith Termez by railread, and its name was changed from Dyushanbe to Stalinabad.

At that time, Stalinabad had no vater pipelines, bridges » electricity, industrial
enterprises, or lsbor cadres, Its mineral rescurces were not developed and its

trade vas insignificant. Tha nev city was to become the center of all future means

of communications of the agricultural country which was backward at that time.

In 1929, industry made up only 20 percent of the gross national product of
the republic, Nearly all the industries vere concentrated in northern Tadzhiki-
stan. fThey included small cotion-cleaning plants, creameries » the Shurabi Coal Mines,
petrolsum industries, and in addition outstanding domestic-type industries. ,
Southern Tadzhikistan's industry vas extremely backward and undeveloped. So lit-
tle cottun was grown » especially in. the Gissarskiy Valley, that it was all consumed
vhere 1t vas grown.
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dater for city irrigation passes through open irrigation ditches and partly
-through pipelines. Water for daily needs is pumped from the Dyushambinka River
and 1s purified by filters before it is passed on to the mains. The length of
the vater main is 50 kilometers and 22 »000 cubic meters are piped to the popula-
ton avery 24 hours. Shortage of water for daily needs is not foreseen at the
present tive.

The development of resources and industrial activity in Stalinabad began
with the building o2 sci:ntific research institutes. During the first years of
development, severel scientific research institutes were organized and the ground -~
vark was lald for the Tadzhik branch of the Acadeny of Sciences USSR. In 1926,
thetown had 5,607 residents and several elementery schools. In 1939, Stalinabad
had 82,540 residents and three VUZ, nine tekhnikums and speecial institutes, and
four FZ0 schools, all of which were attended by a total of about 3,000 students.
Elementary, secondary, and higher institutions in Stalinebad had over 17,000 per-
sons enrolled, or more than one Tifth of the total population.

During the first 10 years of the city's exlstence, a cotton-spinning plant (19526),
& rolling mill (1927), & wmeat combine (1930), s1lk-spinning factory (1932), and
a tannery were built., All these enterprises process local raw materiasls. In 1936,
a large cotton combine was built which wes already producing during the war , and
in 1939 a silk-weaving factory was put into operation. The population of Stalin-
abed also began tn grow rapidly and other enterprises were built, among them a
soft-drink plaot (1932), a sewing factory {1933), footwear factory (1937), mech-
anized bread-baking plant (1938), and a brewery (1939). In the northern part of
the city, Lrick (1930), alabaster (1937), asphalt and concrete (1938), and cement (19h41)
plants were bullt, In addition to these main enterprises, thers exist many artels,
shops, bakeries, creameries, and other minor industries. A coal-mining center 9
Ravatskoye, is located 135 kilometers from Stalinsbad. Nearer the city are two
other coal-mining centers, Tastkutanskoye, 75 kilcmeters away, and Ziddinskoye,
80 kilometers. All three places are high in the mountains. The coal miped in
Ravatskoye is of high quality and plays an important roie in the Stalinabad economy,
while in the other places the voal is of low quality and is not used in Stalina-
bad. By 1950, only traces of petroleum had beep found in the Gissarskaya Valley.

The city's population has Lncreased primarily because of newcomers. In 1926
the population was 5,607 persons; in 1923 it incremsed to 16,000, in 1929 to 19,000,
in 1930 to 24,000, 1n 1938 to 42,000, and in 1939 to 82,540 persons.

Off to one side of the main street are a number of settlements. Most of them
are on hills to the northeast on the periphery of the city. 1In 1940, there vere
over ten such settlements. They were named the first s second, and third Negornyy
(rieaning on a hill) end the first, second, and third Podgernyy (at the base of
a hill), Staryy and Novyy Shakhmansur (at the village), Zavodskiy (at the cotton
plant), Klinicheskiy (at the polyclinic) Privokzal'nyy, and so on. Several of
the settlements have become quite large. Nagornyy, founded in 1937, had over
100 heuses in 1940. It was settled primarily by Russians and Ukrainians, . Most
of the settlemante will be integrated i.to Stalinebad.

The most importent scientific, educational, thestrical, and other cultural
institutions of the republic are located in Stalinabad. The Tadzhik branch of
the Acedemy of Sciences USSR is being built on ulitsa Ayni. It wae begun in 1932
and combines six scientific research institutes, an astronomical observatory, and
several reglonal stations. Geologists have found over 250 deposits of useful
minerals. Many crops of subiropical plants and new varieties cf cotton, grain,
and alfalfa are being raised. During the school year 1948-49, the State Univer-
8ity was opened. New institutes » tekknikums, and special schools are now being
built, At present, there are over 30 primary and secondary schools, & speciel
sclentific research institute of schools , and an institute for the advanced
training of teachers. Tadzhikgoslzdat (Tadzhik State Publishing House), which
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papers in Tadzhik,
ikistana in Tedzhik,
pecial megazines,

is located on ulitsa Lenina, publishes several republic news
Russian, and Uzbek, including the periodical Bolshevik Tadzh
political, sclentific, and art literature, and s series of 8
During its 25 years of operation, Tadzhikgosizdat has publisned over 40 million
books in Tadzhik, An obera and ballet theatre has been built on the new ploshehad
imeni Moskvy. The level of literacy has increased nearly 20 times from 1526 when
it wus only 3T percent of the level of literacy in 1939,

Stalinabad occupies nearly the entire third bench of the Dyushambe River.
The city can expand in a southern direction or be extended over to the right bank,

vidh at present 45 only slightly inhabited, It is here that Lake Komsomol 'skaya
and its water station are located It 15 here also that the Large Gissarskiy
Canel begins ang the wide ulits.. iv.ani Putovskogo leads into the long bridge. which
crosses the Dyushambinka., In general, the city stretches southwerd, beginning

at the railroad » then crosses the secong terrace where wany new industrial enter-

Prises are being built. In the future » some of the enterprises wlll be moved south
or north, or even outside the city's boundarias,

The southermmost tip of Stalinebad has a tannery which is Separated from

the city by a green zone. This area was formerly a desart, but now it has been
built up with enterprises whick are located along the K\\rgau-Tyubinskiy highway,
So far, e meat combine, textile combine, and machine sb~n have been built A

majority of the enterprises planned duriny the postwar Five-Year Fian were being
built in this area in 1950.

The lergth of Stalinabed from the north side o® the city tc the tannery is

about 10 kilometars end 1ts width at the videst point 1s 6.5 “loraters. The main
_highways correspond to the four possible avenues, or approaches, to the city:
from the north, Tasnkentskiy Trakt, changing farther south inte the Ura-Tyubinakiy
highway which leads to the Vakshskaya Plain; trom the west, Termezskiy highway
which farther east Joins the Novo, Pamirskiy highway. fThe dividing 1ine which
separates the c¢ity into twe parts consists of Kirov, Lenin, ang Lakhuti streets.
It is also the main artery which all incoming and outgoing roeds cross. To ease
traffic, a wide automobile highway will pass even fariher aastward along the edge
of the city to take care of the extrs Flow of freight,
‘ In architecture, three stages are easily noticesble.
vhich may be called utilitarian, the necessity was guantity and not beauty. Many
Gtandard houss=s were built at this time, The second stage represents the search
for an architectursl style, and is rapresented by such buildings as the Printing
House, House of Communica“.ions, Building for the Supreme Sovisi of Tadzhik SSR
and the Ministry of Agriculture of the Tepublic, and so on. The third stage is

& modern one, during which Soviet architecture has found 118 own style. It is

f the TsK KP(v) of Tadzhikistan, the sState House, the
of Opera and Ballet, the Medical Institute » eud many
others. 'The predominance of small, and two- or three-story houses is explained
by geological conditions, since the reglon vhere Stalinsbag ig locsted is a highly
Belsnic cne (7-8 Yalls),

During the first stage,

Sparseness of

construction is chara
groving wider, and

keeping its large, ar
age density of thx population during the
hectare. The myst densely populated sect

¢ccupled by Dyushambe (up to 140 persons per hectare). From here the population
decreases in all diractions. An especially sparsely settled section of the city
18 the southern one s which is also spread out, but where dwalling houses are be-
ing built at present. A wide-gauge railroad, coming from the wegt, continues
kilometers. Local trains go there daily., In
-gauge rallroads mees 1in Stalinabad; one goes south to the
-growing Vakshskaya Plain to Pyandzhs (240 kilometers), and another stretches

cteristic of Stalinabad. The city is

een areas free of construction, The aver-
last census was under 30 persons per

ion of the city was thet formerly

eastwurd ‘o Ordzhonikidze for 22
additicn, two narrow
cottion
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northward to the Varsob Canyon to the settlement Pugus (32 kilometers), from where
it goes to the Ziddinskoye Ccal Mines (80 kilometers). This reilrosd, folioving
the eastern boundary of Stalinabad, serves a group of enterprises, a stone quarry
on the Dyushambinka River, and, further north, cement and lime plants located in
the vicinity of lerge deposits of construction materials. A large glass plant

is being built and brick and alabaster plants will be moved here later from the
eity. This northern industrial area, where & group of industries 1s now located,
is separated from the populated section by e 10-kilometer-wide unpopulated strip.

On the central part of the prospekt on the large ploshchad’ imeni Moskvy
stand the Tadzhik Opera and Ballet Building. A large three-story hotel 1s also
located on this plosheched. Not far from these buildings is the House of TsK KP(b)
of Tadzhikistan and farther down is the two-story printing house., At the bend
in ulitsa Lenina is the small ploshched' Pravitel'stva, where the House of Com-
munications and, next tc it, the Stats House are located. Farther morth, where
ulitsa Lenina crosses ulitsa Putovskoge, stands a large general store. Across
from 1t 1s the park imeni Frunze and mext to it the Tadzhik Drama Theater, Lhe
theater imeni Lakhuti, and the Zelenyy Theater. A trolley-bus line runs between
this ploshchad® and thz atation,

Stalinabad continues to grow. Three kolkhoz settlements for migratory work-
ers are being built in the Vakheshskaya Plain. Next to the enterprises processing
azricultural raw materialr are industriss which serve the naads of the agricultural
economy, transpert, and industry growing up outside the capital. During Werld
War II, wackine-building and repair plants wers built. The machine-building plant
imeni Ordzhonikidze¢ produces petroleum equipment and parte for agricultural machines.
An electromecbanical plant, "Sel'elektro," produces equipment for electrlc power
stations, including small turbines for agricultural electric power stations.

The repair of wmotors, combines, and the production of parts for them 1s done by
the Motor Repoir Plant. Spere parts for autowobiles and tractors are produced
by the "Traktorodetal'" and “"Avtozapaschast'™ plants.

Such a rapid growth of the city necessitates expanding its presen: source
of power supply. The problem cf supplying the city with local fuzl has not been
s0lved. One powerful source of electric energy for Stalinabud is the Varsob River.
The second hydroelectric pover station, the Nizhniy Varsob GES, 15 being built
between tha Varsob GES and Stalinsbad; it will be almost twice as powerful as the
firet GES. Both stations are automatically controlled and in the future it is
planned to chavnge -them to remote control from & distance nf 10 kilometers, Accord-
ing to the pestwar Five-fear Plan, new enterprises were to provide additional
sources of pover. In addition, the construction of cloth, weaving, knitted fabric,
dyeing ard finishing factories, milk and margarine plants, large confectionery
factories, glass plants and "Metalloshirpotreb" were to be completed. At the
same time, several operating enterprises are being expended and reconstructed.
For exemple, the mechanized bread-baking plant is setting up & macaroni shop, &
sewer-pipe rhop at the ceramics plant, and so on.

The populution of Stalinabad grows because of the arrival cf new people and
also, to a large extent, because of natural processes. The total number of Ted-
zhikistan residents greatly erceeds 100,000; that is, it has increased by more
than 20 times during the past 20 years.(l)

During 1952, a dwelling house for workers of the Ministry of Justice was put
into operation and a six-apartment building for timber-industry workers was
built. The Kurgan-Tyubinskliy Construction Administration is building new cul-
tural and public s=rvice buildings in Stalinated.(2) Several 18-apariment. buildings
are also under censtruction.(3)
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